

Harrogate District of Sanctuary

Report on Visit to Jonas Centre

Respite Weekend

29th June to 1st July 2018

Contents:

- 1. Introduction:
 - 1.1. Harrogate District of Sanctuary
 - 1.2. The Jonas Centre
 - 1.3. The families
 - 1.4. The Sponsors
- 2. Planning
- 3. The Weekend
- 4. Evaluation
- 5. Conclusion

Appendices:

- A. Information for the families
- B. Finances
- C. Evaluation: Committee D. Evaluation: Families

Report Compiled by Jenny Travena: Chair: HDS 26th July 2018





1. Introduction:

1.1 Harrogate District of Sanctuary:

"A place where refugees and asylum seekers feel safe, welcome and included"

Harrogate District of Sanctuary (HDS) was formed at the end of 2016, beginning of 2017, following increasing awareness of the effects of the war in Syria, the desperate plight of refugees, and the desire to 'do something about it'!

During 2017 we arranged a series of open meetings, presenting the issues faced by refugees and asylum seekers. We also arranged several social events including a day in the country and a Christmas Party.

At our AGM in January 2018 we planned an increased programme of activity which would include further open meetings, more social events, and a weekend away for the families.

1.2 The Jonas Centre:

Nestling at the heart of Wensleydale in the tranquil beauty of the Yorkshire Dales, The Jonas Centre is uniquely positioned to provide all that is needed for individuals and groups, seeking relaxation, to enjoy all that the Dales has to offer.



The Centre, situated next to the village of Redmire, comprises 12 log cabins, all fully equipped and providing independent accommodation for families. In addition there is a large barn which has a communal industrial kitchen, a large hall that can seat 80 people, plus two lounges on the upper level for quiet spaces. The grounds are secure, away from the road and include a small play area with swings etc, a small animal enclosure, and a larger playing field next to the barn for football and other games. There is ample space for outdoor dining and barbecues.

1.3 The families

In July 2016 Harrogate District welcomed the first two families of refugees from Syria. Over the next few months these were joined be eight more families from Syria, a family from Iraq and one family from Sudan. All the families have children, four of whom have disabilities. Most of these families spent some time in Lebanon after fleeing Syria, before they were able to come to England, under the government's Syrian Vulnerable Persons Resettlement Scheme, with the help of the UNHCR, the support of the Refugee Council and local authorities. In addition, the families are supported informally by the Harrogate District of Sanctuary and the Refugees Welcome in Harrogate Group.

1.4 The sponsors

The Harrogate District of Sanctuary was delighted to receive financial support for the weekend at the Jonas Centre from the following organisations:

The Wharfedale Foundation	£1,500
North Yorkshire County Council Refugee Resettlement fund	£1,000
Knaresborough Rotary Club	£500
Harrogate Lions	£500
Wensleydale Rotary Club	£200

At HDS we are very much indebted to the above organisations for their support and greatly appreciate their financial assistance without which our venture would not have been possible.

Heartfelt thanks also to the staff at the Jonas Centre for all their help and support in the run up to our visit, and during our stay. We were made to feel very welcome!!

2. Planning

- **2.1 First Idea:** Following several personal visits to the Jonas Centre, the Chair of HDS proposed that it would be an ideal place to take our refugee families.
- **2.2 How to fund it:** The initial response of the committee was 'where will we get the money from?' but someone sent a link to the Wharfedale Foundation and that started the ball rolling.
- 2.3 Initial Visit with family representatives: Before Christmas, three of the refugee men were taken on a site visit to see if they thought it would be possible and if it was something which they would like to do. They fell in love with the Jonas Centre and a date was fixed. This was subsequently changed; initially because it would have been during Ramadan, and then a further change was necessary because it clashed with a Refugee Council event. The date was finally fixed on 29th June to 1st July 2018.

- **2.4 Applications from families:** After Christmas, we circulated an application form for families so we knew just how many people, adults/children were coming, etc and any information we needed (allergies, medication, etc). The form also included an opt-out for photographs and an agreement to pay £80 per family towards the cost, split into two payments.
- 2.5 Applying for sponsorship: The first bid was made to the Wharfedale Foundation. This had to be done at very short notice to meet the deadline, with annual reports, independently scrutinised accounts and a detailed plan. The planning seemed rather daunting but having to put down on paper, step by step, date by date how we were going to organise the event proved incredibly helpful. We also found out the NYCC had some funding available for which we could apply. In addition, following a presentation to the Knaresborough Rotary Club, and through their contacts with the Wensleydale Rotary Club, we received a further grant of £700, and Harrogate Lions also made a generous donation. The balance was made up from our own local fundraising efforts, such as a coffee morning and raffles etc.
- **2.6 Transport:** In 2017 we had been provided with a double decker bus by "Vamooz" a TransDev subsidiary, and we approached them again. Due to the constraints of the access to the Jonas Centre this time we couldn't have a double decker so a single decker bus was provided.
- 2.7 Provisions: On a follow-up visit to the Centre we were advised to place an order with Tesco, who regularly deliver for group bookings on the site. We planned to put a Welcome Pack in each cabin including basics such as tea, coffee, sugar, milk, eggs and fruit etc. We also needed supplies for the meal on the first evening, and other supplies for over the weekend. In addition, because meat for the barbecue had to be Halal, we planned a shopping trip to Leeds the day before the visit, to buy enough Halal chicken and lamb to make a barbeque for up to 80 people! (Halal meat is difficult to find in Harrogate and the families go to Leeds or Bradford to buy their meat)
- 2.8 Activities: We planned to offer a variety of activities for the families on the Saturday: A visit to nearby Bolton Castle; a train ride to Leyburn with a look round the village and shops etc, or simply to relax at the Jonas Centre. The information about each activity was translated to Arabic so the families would be able to choose, and every family chose the train ride to Leyburn. In addition, outside of the arranged trips, there was plenty of opportunity and space, for games for the children and the more energetic adults. Games equipment was purchased including a parachute, a target mat with Frisbees, a rounders' set etc.
- 2.9 Information for the families: an outline plan of the weekend was provided, in Arabic, for the families: This covered details of the transport, details of the organised activities (see above), details of the Welcome packs and a rough timetable of events. In addition to the written information the details were explained to the families at the Friday morning Women's group in Harrogate, and at one of the English Classes in Ripon. (See appendix A)

3. The Weekend

3.1 Friday 29th June

- 3.1.1 Preparation on Site: The committee arrived at the Jonas Centre at around 3.00pm, at the same time as the Tesco Delivery Van! Welcome packs were made up for the 9 cabins that were to be occupied by the families. (The remaining 3 cabins were used by committee members or volunteers). The Jonas Centre staff had very kindly made up the beds in the 9 cabins, saving us a big job! We had taken towels for everyone so these were distributed. Meat for the BBQ, plus the pizza and chips etc for Friday's meal were stored in the large chest freezer. We were given instructions about the oven and advised not to have it too hot! (See below!) The games equipment which we had brought with us was put in the shed with the Jonas Centre equipment, which turned out not to be a good move! See evaluation
- 3.1.2 Arrivals and settling in: The coach arrived a little earlier than anticipated, so despite our best plans we were in a bit of disarray to welcome the families and help them to settle in. However, everyone was finally settled into their cabins, the children were quick to start playing in the playground and the playing field at the bottom of the site.
- 3.1.3 Evening meal: We had decided we would make life easy for ourselves and just do pizzas and fish fingers and chips. Unfortunately the oven was not hot enough and it took forever to cook everything. In the end we didn't manage to cook everything, which was a pity because I think the families could have eaten more (and also we didn't get any, having to resort to bread and cheese in our cabin!). Fortunately, we had taken two large tray bake cakes, which were meant for the following day but we got those out to fill any gaps!

We asked the families to be back in the barn for 10.15 on Saturday morning for a welcome and health and safety briefing from the Jonas Centre Staff

3.2 Saturday 30th June

3.2.1 Briefing:

The families were a little slow in turning up for the briefing, perhaps we had not communicated this well enough. A couple of the men interpreted for Joy from the Centre, to much amusement. The children were all outside playing. But we were anxious about the time as we were due to catch the train at 11.00!

3.2.2 Train Ride:

After much encouragement everyone made it to the Redmire Station on time, though the two pregnant ladies were struggling up the hill, in the heat. The road crossing was considered a risk due to it being on a sharp bend, under a bridge, without footpaths, but volunteers were stationed at each side of the bend in the road to slow the traffic down so everyone was seen safely across.

The elderly gentleman was taken in a wheelchair. With hindsight we could have arranged this differently (see evaluation). While waiting for the train to arrive people took lots of photographs. On the train we were greeted by a very friendly group of staff (volunteers of the Wensleydale Railway). The children were given activities to do during the ride and the adults enjoyed looking at the views over beautiful Wensleydale. Once in Leyburn Station we assembled the group for the 10 minute walk into Leyburn. Families were then free to look round the town and the shops, maybe go for a coffee etc, but with hindsight this could have been handled better (see evaluation). We asked everyone to meet up at 1.00 so that we could walk back together. The train ride back was also enjoyable.



Back at Redmire station one of the Railway volunteers asked if they could have a group photograph for their publicity materials. Most of the families were happy to pose for the photos.

It was very hot and the pregnant ladies were getting very tired so they waited at the station, with the old gentleman, for a car to take them back to the Centre.

Whilst most of the adults were resting, and also at every other opportunity, the children and younger adults played football and table tennis, and enjoyed other activities on the playing fields next to the outdoor seating area:





3.2.3 Barbecue and visitors:

The families had a much needed rest before gathering together in the barn to prepare the food for the barbecue. We were expecting several visitors to join us on Saturday afternoon for the barbecue including members of the Wensleydale Rotary Club, members and supporters of the Ripon City of Sanctuary, and others from Harrogate who knew the families. One couple from Harrogate brought with them one of the refugee families who had not come for the weekend, which was great as the gentleman is a chef and he took charge of preparing the kebabs, humus and sauces etc.



The ladies were busy preparing salads helped by some of our volunteers, and the men lit the barbecues and started to cook the chicken and kebabs which were then kept warm in the oven and warming oven. The plan was to have everyone seated together at long tables, and all sitting down to eat at the same time, so we had to wait until everything was ready. (See evaluation)





In the end there were about 80 people eating together and having a great time.

3.3 Sunday 1st July

3.3.1 Guided Walk to the river:

The families had breakfast on their own, then a member of the Wensleydale Rotary Club came to join us and after coffee with one of the families lead a walk across the fields to the river. It was very hot and most of the families and smaller children stayed at the Centre, the children carrying on with games etc and the ladies starting to pack and clear the cabins.

3.3.2 Shared lunch:

We joined together again at the barn and enjoyed a shared lunch, more chicken appeared and was barbecued, the remaining pizza, and chips were cooked (this time in a hot oven, and a dish of Molokhia leaves and chicken, with rice, was also presented! Everyone had plenty to eat and drink, some eating inside, some taking the food outside. It seemed very relaxed.

3.3.3 Clearing up:

Following this was a great clear up, in the cabins, in the communal kitchen, around all the outdoor areas etc. The remaining food was shared out for families to take. All the tables and chairs were stacked away, the hall swept, the kitchen floor mopped etc etc. So that everyone was ready for the coach which arrived at 3.30 to take the families home.

3.3.4 Departure:

The coach was on time again and finally everyone, with all their bags and parcels, was safely on board and departed on time.

3.3.5 This left the four committee members to go round all the cabins, check that everything was in order and collect up all the towels and anything else that was left. (See Evaluation)

4. Evaluation:

Both committee members and families were asked to evaluate the weekend. Comments from the forms submitted have been put together: (See below)

4.1 Committee:

The five committee members that had attended the weekend completed evaluation forms and also had several discussions about what went well and what we could have done to make it even better. Many lessons were learned so that if the visit is repeated we will do some things differently.

4.2 Families:

The initial response from all the families was that they had had a wonderful time and they all wanted to go again, and stay longer! They were also given evaluation forms to fill in. These were used in their following ESOL classes as a further opportunity to learn English, both reading and writing etc, and gave them an opportunity to discuss the weekend. As the forms were filled in whilst the adults were together their responses are very similar.

5. Conclusion

In summary the overall feel of the weekend was that, although exhausting and at times stressful for the organisers, it was really worth doing as the families obviously had a wonderful time. It was lovely to see them relaxing and having fun together, enjoying the beautiful countryside, and spending some quality time, not only with each other but also with the English people who support them, and visitors from the local area. The families were able to explore more of the area in which they live, and also had shared time in a safe environment away from their daily preoccupations. One area we had not really thought through was the 'free time' allowed to the families to 'explore Leyburn'. On reflection, it is probably not in their culture to wander round tourist towns looking at tourist type shops or going for a coffee, so whilst we had tried not to structure the visit too much we could have perhaps at least guided the families a bit more as to what to expect or what the options were. As mentioned above, and in the evaluations, there are many things that we would do differently. This was the first time any of us had been involved in such a project and it was a great learning experience. Overall the small group of people directly involved are pleased that our efforts were successful, and that in spite of the difficulties, particularly around access, all the families, without exception were sad to leave, want to go again, and want to stay longer. (With that in mind we have made a provisional booking for five days during the summer holidays in 2019!)

Appendices:

- A. Information for families
- **B. Finances:**
- C. Evaluation committee
- D. Evaluation Families

A. Information for Families:

Jonas Centre Weekend – Friday 29th June to Sunday 1st July

Outline plan:

Transport:

Pick up Points:

Harrogate: Victoria Avenue, near the Library
 Ripon: Bus Station, Coach pick up area (?)
 6.15/6.30

Arrive Jonas Centre around 7.15

(Subsequently changed to include a pick up point in Knaresborough at 5.15)

On Arrival:

Families directed to their cabins, given keys Welcome packs will be in each cabin (see list) Brief orientation to the site

8.00pm approx: Shared meal provided in the Barn

Saturday: All timings approximate

Breakfast in cabins

10.00 to 3.00: Optional activities:

- 10.15: Walk to and Bolton Castle to explore the castle and grounds, see birds of prey and wild boar. Return by 2.00pm or
- 2. Train ride into Leyburn and look round the small market town, return train ride is by Steam train. Return by 2.00pm
- 3. Rest and relaxation at the Centre, with indoor and outdoor games available

From 5.00 approx:

BBQ and social evening: Joined by Wensleydale Rotary Club

Sunday 1st July:

Breakfast in cabins

- 1. Guided walk around the village of Redmire, down to the river
- 2. Rest and relaxation, indoor and outdoor games/ football match? etc
- 2.00; Shared lunch in the barn (outside if its fine)

Leaving the Centre:

3.00: Packing up and cleaning cabins

3.30: Coach pick up

Arrive Ripon approx 4.30 Arrive Harrogate approx 5.30

Welcome Pack

These will be put in each cabin and contain the following:

- Coffee (Americano) 100g
- Sugar 1KG
- Teabags
- Milk 4 pints
- Eggs 1 dozen
- Orange squash 1litre
- Summer fruit squash 1 litre
- 2 Packets of biscuits
- Crisps 12 pack, variety
- Bananas
- Satsumas

Please take any other items you may want for breakfast etc e.g. bread, cereal, cheese

Each cabin has a small, fully equipped, kitchen with an oven, and fridge and all plates, dishes, pans etc.

There will also be food available in the communal barn

(This information was translated into Arabic for the families: in addition to being given verbally at the Women's group in Harrogate and an ESOL class in Ripon)

APPENDIX B

B. Finances:

Income from sponsors:

•	Wharfedale Foundation	£1,500.00
•	NYCC Resettlement Scheme	£1,000.00
•	Knaresborough Rotary Club	£500.00
•	Harrogate Lions	£500.00
•	Wensleydale Rotary Club	£200.00
		£3,700.00

Expenditure:

•	Jonas Centre Accommodation	£2,807.00
•	Transport	£448.00
•	Food:	
	 Tesco Order 	£329.00
	 Meat etc 	£250.00
		£3,834.00

HDS Account:

_	100001111	
•	Contribution from 9 families	£680.00
•	Accommodation fee for others	£500.00
		£1,180.00
•	Games equipment	£63.00
•	Wensleydale Railway Tickets	£260.50
•	Sundry expenses	£250.00
		£573.00

Harrogate District of Sanctuary is committed to using any funds raised to achieve the aims of the organisation, including; supporting refugees and asylum seekers in becoming integrated into the community and independent, and also raising awareness of the issues they face. We aim to achieve this through providing opportunities for social interaction, supporting English language learning, befriending etc. Through public meetings and social media we hope to reach out to the community to offer a positive perspective of refugees and asylum seekers.

Jonas Centre Weekend: Evaluation form: Committee

What did you think of the planning and organisation?

The things we planned were OK but not enough thought given to detailed plans e.g. for during the visit to Leyburn, or for the children's games and activities. Or if we would have enough helpers to do everything that needed doing. Another time we need more detailed plans for the whole stay, with estimates of timings and numbers of helpers require, and possibly allocating tasks in more details.

- Need to be clearer about allocating tasks, especially preparing the site and clearing up
- Delegate responsibility for each family and their cabin
- Like a military campaign

Did we have enough people to help, volunteers, interpreters, drivers etc?

No! it would have helped to have more volunteers to organise the children's activities, and also to clear the cabins and site at the end of the stay which was quite stressful.

Another interpreter would have helped but by next year hopefully everyone's English will be better

- Some of Syrian men happy to help with interpreting
- No: Volunteers left to own devices in Leyburn, not familiar with the area
- Families at a loss as to what to do in Leyburn
- Need detailed plans for specific activities
- Need interpeters
- Think so: great to have Hazel and Angela for the day on Saturday

What worked well?

The train ride into Leyburn appeared a success but see below

The barbecue also worked well but see below

Allocation of cabins

Getting food delivered and the welcome packs

- Having the whole site to ourselves
- Communal eating
- The weather!!!
- The train ride
- Knowing that the families like to sit together to eat

- The environment: families relaxed and content
- Certainly helped people to bond
- The weather!
- Everyone loved their cabins
- Successful trip to Leyburn, and the river walk

What could we have done better, or differently?

Friday evening meal was very stressful due to not understanding the oven and so not having it hot enough. Pizza and chips was meant to be an easy option but turned out a nightmare. Another time meals should be prepared in advance and frozen so can just heat up at the Centre

The visit to Leyburn was not organised properly: The train ride was good but the plan had been to let the families have free time in Leyburn to wander round the shops or go for a coffee etc, but there should have been more volunteers to accompany the families, or volunteers who knew more about what the options were, e.g. the Shawl etc

The BBQ was a great success but we could have done with a bigger barbecue, or more disposable ones as it took a long time to cook everything.

Getting up and down from the upper cabins to the barn was very difficult for those that had children in wheelchairs and pushchairs. Another time there would have to be people with cars prepared to ferry them up and down, with all the families having relevant mobile numbers to ring if they needed a lift etc.

Games and activities for the children were not properly organised. The equipment we had taken with us was put in the games shed which the children had open access to, so everything got mixed up, some pieces were broken, others lost. There was no-one to organise the children's games. Another time we must ensure that someone is delegated to do this, and also to keep the equipment separate and only brought our under supervision.

- Having a bus/coach for group expeditions
- Rethink meal plan for first evening
- Leyburn had little to offer: families need more support/leaders who knew the area
- Pre-prepared meal for Friday evening
- Clearing up at the end/delegating tasks/needed more volunteers to help
- Individual volunteers responsible for a block of cabins to avoid confusion e.g. over towels
- Need a litter bin in play area and encourage children (and parents) to assist in using it

Did the timing work?

The bus arrived earlier than anticipated so we were taken off guard and not everyone was clear over which families they were welcoming, or which cabins they were going into.

The Welcome and Health and Safety talk from JC staff should have been on arrival

but having the arrival time so late made that impractical. This meant having the talk on Saturday morning, not everyone was there on time...we were then rushed to make sure we got to the train station on time!

Due to lack of organisation in Leyburn two hours was a long time for some of the families to be left to their own devices.

- Early coach arrival so not all volunteers ready
- Yes: couldn't have predicted the oven was slow so took a lot longer for Friday evening meal
- Need to factor in the way the families manage their own time
- Surprisingly yes!

Would you be prepared to do it all again?

Definitely!! In spite of the shortage of helpers and subsequent hard work. The families had a wonderful time in spite of the difficulties getting up and down to the barn etc. so this made it very worthwhile

If we learn from the lessons of this first trip I'm sure it could work better another time

- More staff and younger staff to engage with the children
- Coach to take on visits
- Ready prepared meal for first night (or bought in)
- Yes, with reservations
- Yes
- Probably but would need more volunteers to help: felt under pressure at times
- Not sure I could do a week

Any other comments:

Lessons:

More detailed planning in advance; especially re meals and activities More volunteers/helpers needed

A system for ferrying people up and down to and from the barn

Organised activities for the children, and people to supervise them!

Guided tour of Leyburn, or possibly extended train ride to Bedale as the train ride itself was very popular

Longer time: e.g. Monday to Friday:

This would allow an afternoon arrival (3.00ish) so a Welcome and Health and Safety briefing could be given at the start:

Hiring a coach for a visit e.g. to Hawes, again with guided tour.

Engage early with Wensleydale Rotary Club, also the Quaker group in Leyburn, and other possible local groups that we could involve

- The weather was fabulous so helped enormously
- Lovely to sit outside after children had gone to bed until late, laughing, chatting, drumming, singing etc
- Need plans for wet weather

- Excellent weekend: good to see families relaxed and enjoying themselves
- Great weekend.
- Need to look at each aspect of preparation and activities what worked/what didn't to help inform next event
- What would the children do if it rained
- How many other expeditions could we arrange
- What other food would be possible

APPENDIX D

Jonas Centre Weekend: Evaluation form: Families:

These forms were completed during one of the ESOL classes where everyone reviewed the weekend together and there was a consensus on how it went, so the replies were predictably repetitive. (12 forms completed)

1. How was the coach journey, including timings and pick up points?

- Amazing. Left Knaresborough 5.15
- The journey was fine I like the journey
- The journey was fine
- As above
- As above
- The bus was on time I liked the journey
- I went by car I liked the journey
- The bus was on time the journey was fine
- I drove the journey was fine
- The journey was fine
- As above
- As above
- (Came for Saturday only)

2. Tell us what you liked or didn't like about the cabins

- I was very comfortable
- The cabins were very beautiful I likes the cabins
- I liked the cabin very much beautiful (x 4)
- We liked the cabins very much the bedroom was very good
- We liked the cabins very much

- As above
- We liked the cabins very much the cabin was very good, bathroom, kitchen bedroom
- The cabins were very nice they were clean (x2)

3. What did you think about the site/area? Did you have any difficulty going up and down to the barn?

- Beautiful fine
- The slopes were difficult for young children and wheelchairs the gravel was slippy (x 2)
- It was safe for the children My children liked playing outside
- It was difficult for a wheelchair (x 2)
- The road was too steep for the children the road was too steep for the children
- The slopes were difficult for young children and wheelchairs (x 3)
- The site was good no problems (x 2)

4. What did you think of the visit to Leyburn on the train (or visit to Bolton Castle)? (In the end all the families opted for the train – none for the castle)

- I liked the railway and I shopped in Leyburn
- The train was nice when we arrived in Leyburn we didn't know where to go
- As above
- The train was fun for the children. When we arrived in Leyburn we didn't know where to go. We needed a guide (x 2)
- There were not many facilities for wheelchairs the walk to Leyburn was not very good for wheelchairs
- There were no facilities for wheelchairs when we arrived in Leyburn we didn't know where to go
- The train was nice when we arrived in Leyburn we didn't know where to go
- As above
- The train was nice
- I liked the train Leyburn is a nice town We went to the church we drank coffee (x2)

5. What did you think of the activities/games?

- My daughter played football / I walked
- The children and the men enjoyed playing football. I like being with my friend all times
- The children and men enjoyed playing football (x 4)
- They were very good. The games were safe for the children (x 4)
- I liked the children and the men enjoyed playing football
- Everyone liked the games (x2)

6. What did you think about the meals, time of meals and food offered etc?

- The food was very tasty
- The food was great (x4)
- Very nice (x2)
- -
- The meal was good
- Great
- The barbecue was very nice (x 2)
- Saturday barbecue only food was great

7. Tell us what you liked best about the weekend

- I liked meeting many people
- Being together (x 5)
- I liked being with the other ladies and talking
- I liked going to the river I liked bring with the ladies and talking
- I liked going to the river I liked being with everybody
- I liked being with everybody
- The best thing was everyone being together (x2)
- Everybody was happy I had memories of home with everyone eating together

8. What could we have done better or differently?

- I was very happy with the weekend
- We could have breakfast together (x 6)
- -
- Better wheelchair facilities (x2)
- -
- Nothing (x 2)

9. Did you have any difficulties/problems during the weekend?

- No
- -
- It was difficult with the wheelchair it was a bit dangerous (x 3)
- -
- It was difficult with the wheelchair sometimes (x2)
- No (x3)
- The slopes
- It was difficult on the slopes for little children

10. Please tell us anything else you want to say about the weekend or any suggestions for another visit...

- I would like to go for a week
- Thankyou so much
- Thankyou

- The people were very helpful (x3)
- -
- Thank you (x2)
- -
- It would be better to go away during the school holidays
- Go away during the school holidays
- I like you cooking breakfast, lunch and dinner I am very happy about this work
 I like them together the family breakfast, lunch and dinner

11. Would you like to go again?

- Yes (x7)
- Yes, of course
- Yes again
- Yes thank you for the trip
- Yes please
- Yes please
- Thank you so much you working very hard you are great